










































































































 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 1 of 7 
 

Morrow County 
Compensation Board Meeting Minutes 

February 12, 2019 
Bartholomew Building 

Heppner, Oregon 
 

Present 
Lisanne Currin, Compensation Board 
Andy Fletcher, Compensation Board 
Eileen Hendricks, Compensation Board 
Jill Martin, Compensation Board 
Darrell Green, Administrator 

Karmen Carlson, Human Resources Director 
Roberta Lutcher, Executive Assistant 
Absent 
Kevin Ince, Compensation Board 

Call to Order:  1:03 p.m. 
Open Comments 
Karmen Carlson, Human Resources Director, expressed appreciation to the Compensation Board 
members for attending the meeting, especially given the weather.  She said the notebooks for the 
meeting were prepared with the intention of offering insight into how the County is doing, 
overall.  At last year’s Compensation Board meeting, the Board discussed the functions of each 
job and how they measured with private sector jobs.  She said she reached out for comments, 
which can be found in the notebook.  She explained that most of the jobs cannot be compared on 
an apples-to-apples basis with other counties, so it was difficult to have the information match. 
 
Eileen Hendricks asked about the information from Umatilla County.  Ms. Carlson offered 
several reasons for the difficulties she encounter in trying to compare Morrow County to 
Umatilla County:  Umatilla County is much larger in population and square miles; Umatilla 
County often has several people in some jobs with duties broken out quite differently from 
Morrow County; and due to its larger population, Umatilla County builds its workforce much 
differently. 
 
Election of Officers 
Jill Martin nominated Lisanne Currin to remain as Chair.  Andy Fletcher seconded.   
 
Chair Currin welcomed those in the audience and noted a few Commissioners were in 
attendance.  She asked for comment. 
 
Commissioner Don Russell said the Morrow County Board of Commissioners appreciated the 
time put in by the Compensation Board members.  He said the members were hand-selected for 
their skill set and because they were adept at doing this job.  He said all the Compensation Board 
members are familiar with employees, wages, and certainly with Morrow County and the larger 
region.  He said he would be available in his office if there were questions for him or about his 
role as a County Commissioner.  Before leaving, he said he knew the members would do a good 
job and that he had confidence in them. 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 2 of 7 
 

 
Commissioner Lindsay quipped she “echoed” Commissioner Russell’s comments.   
 
Minutes 
Mr. Fletcher moved to approve the 2018 Compensation Board meeting minutes, as stated.  Ms. 
Martin seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Elected Officials Compensation Deliberations 
Commissioners 
Chair Currin said it appeared all the bargaining units agreed on three-percent Cost of Living 
Adjustments (COLAs) for 2019/2020, and then asked if there were any comments. 
 
Ms. Martin said this year’s meeting looks to be “quieter” than those of the last two years.  There 
were lots of important topics discussed the last couple of years, she said, and there were even 
comments submitted from most of the positions.  She added the Board handled a lot in the last 
two years, which helped settle things down and provide a good idea of the direction the County 
is going. 
 
Ms. Carlson agreed, and added everyone had their concerns and questions answered in the last 
couple of years.  She said she listened to the recordings and read the minutes of those meetings 
and could feel the progress everyone made.  She said she thought everyone was comfortable with 
what took place in the last few years.   
 
Mr. Fletcher said the question is still out there now that the Commissioner positions were made 
full-time.  Is there any sentiment toward what the Commissioners believe they want to see done 
in the future? 
 
Ms. Carlson said she offered them an opportunity to provide a letter and she received nothing.  
She said she thought the Commissioners felt comfortable with what has been done with their 
wages.  Ms. Carlson said her belief was the Commissioners feel they do their jobs on a full-time 
basis, but they also have the freedom to take care of their personal businesses and issues, as well.  
All three of them really do put in a tremendous amount of time, she said, and they’ve done a 
good job dividing up duties and representation on committees and boards.   
 
Chair Currin asked how the County is doing financially, as a whole. 
 
Ms. Carlson said she did not feel qualified to comment and referred the Board to the Assessment 
& Tax information provided by Mike Gorman, Assessor/Tax Collector.  Brief discussion. 
 
Chair Currin stated the Board would review the information for each elected position and take 
them under consideration at the end for approval, etc.  
 
Clerk 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 3 of 7 
 

Ms. Carlson pointed out the letter in the books submitted by Clerk Bobbi Childers. 
 
Ms. Martin said the letter appeared to be the same as what Ms. Childers submitted last few year 
and that she did not see any changes to her role or any expansion of her duties.    
 
Chair Currin said when she looked at the comparables, the County was still on the upper end and 
still in the ballpark, even though that doesn’t sound very scientific. 
 
Ms. Martin said she did not see any significant changes from the previous year. 
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Carlson said a letter was not submitted by the Treasurer, Gayle Gutierrez, but she is still 
doing the same job as last year and nothing has changed.  She added Treasurer duties are very 
difficult to compare from county to county as some are part-time, some full-time and some have 
added duties such as tax collection. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said the County is still on the upper end. 
 
Chair Currin said at one time the Morrow County Treasurer was doing the tax function as well.  
Who decides that? 
 
Administrator Darrell Green provided the history of that position in recent years and said elected 
officials have to follow Oregon Revised Statues (ORS) relative to their positions.    
 
Chair Currin asked who has the authority to change job duties of an elected official. 
 
Mr. Green said possibly the Commissioners, but only through control of the purse strings.  
Beyond that, it’s difficult to make major changes, he said. 
 
Surveyor 
Mr. Green provided an update on the status of the Surveyor position.  He said there is a contract 
with Stephen Haddock through 2020 for the use of his equipment, tools, truck, etc., and he 
receives pass-through fees as the County Surveyor, however, he does not receive any benefits.  
Mr. Haddock also is compensated for re-monumentation work, but that’s outside of the scope of 
today’s meeting, said Mr. Green.  
 
Chair Currin said given that situation, the Compensation Board really has no input. 
 
Mr. Green agreed, and added fees will be evaluated twice a year, County-wide. 
 
Ms. Martin asked if the final determination for this position was that it will move away from 
being an elected official.  Mr. Green said that is correct.   
 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 4 of 7 
 

Assessor 
Ms. Carlson said a letter was provided by Assessor/Tax Collector Mike Gorman, but nothing has 
changed about his job duties or the amount of people supervised. 
 
Chair Currin asked if any positions had significant changes in budgets for which they are 
responsible or significant changes in structure.   
 
Mr. Green said in the upcoming budget cycle, there are basically no requests for new positions 
from departments supervised by elected officials. 
 
Discussion then took place on the Sheriff’s salary and the need, by statute, for it to be the highest 
in that department.  In recent years, the County had to increase Sheriff Ken Matlack’s salary to 
accommodate that requirement and the County may find itself in that same situation in the near 
future.  Chair Currin said it may be such a thing that the County Commission needs to deal with.   
 
District Attorney (DA) 
Justin Nelson said last year, for the DA position, not salary, but stipend, which is above any base 
salary, so that’s a unique aspect.  Many counties in Oregon have those and some go very high, 
such as Rod Underhill in Multnomah County.  There are two current salary bases, he added.  The 
stipend in Morrow County is more recent, and started about three or four years ago.  He said last 
year he asked for no changes during the Compensation Board meeting process, but there was a 
COLA aspect so instead of limiting, he told the Board to feel free to do whatever, up or down.  
Things still have to go through the budget aspect no matter what, so it still could get changed 
either way, he said.  Mr. Nelson said the only differing factor he noticed and wanted to add was 
about similar counties.  He said he didn’t think we directly compared to because the line of work 
…is Umatilla County.  The job duties are about the same but there is management aspects that 
are different for Umatilla County, but the comparable is for Umatilla County’s about a $19,500 
stipend, so that’s the only additional information he said he wanted to provide. 
 
Chair Currin asked two questions - is the stipend treated as wage or is it flat; and are taxes 
withheld on the stipend?   
 
Mr. Nelson replied, yes.   
 
Chair Currin asked additional questions - is it considered compensation; are they supplementing 
your State compensation or are they paying for services provided to Morrow County. 
 
Mr. Nelson said the stipend is a supplemental to the State, that is the difference.  The stipend is 
just for the exact, no additional services for the stipend and that’s the way it is for other counties.  
He said Clatsop County bases it on a certain percentage that is tied to the Sheriff or perhaps the 
assistant, but they base it on a certain percentage of the highest paid Deputy District Attorney 
(DDA) because there’s actually an issue.  There’s an issue, he said, in Multnomah, Washington, 
and Clackamas Counties with the DDAs getting paid higher than the DAs.  Mr. Nelson 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 5 of 7 
 

continued, DDA salary is purely based on from the county perspective, so the county might have 
it and the State salary is usually very flat based on a set amount for about 28-30 counties in 
Oregon and the larger six to eight are a different amount.  There’s usually a very base amount 
and it only ever goes up for COLAs, he said.  It’s always part of the government budget but 
we’re not really well liked by the legislature sometimes, so prosecutors don’t ever get raises, he 
commented.   
 
Chair Currin asked of Mr. Nelson, without disclosing your State wage, does the stipend with 
your State wage keep you above your DDA?   
 
He replied it does.  We do not have the same issue right now in Morrow County…but it’s hard 
getting folks in rural areas, he said.  They’re always poaching each other in the valley areas and 
the cost of living is higher too, so they pay quite a bit more.  In Morrow County we do really 
well, we do pay our DDA a good salary.  He’s paid very well for his level, said Mr. Nelson.  
Umatilla County is always losing folks to the valley and they might even have two openings 
right now, so there’s an issue but we are doing a good job with that, he said.   
 
Justice of the Peace 
Ms. Carlson said Judge Ann Spicer did not turn in a letter but provided statistics of traffic 
citations, fines, etc., for the last few years. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said her salary was bumped up last year.   
 
Chair Currin said if she remembered correctly, there aren’t very many comparables. 
 
Ms. Martin added that was part of the discussion last year too. 
 
Sheriff 
Chair Currin said she previously commented on the only issue she noticed.  She added from a 
comparable county standpoint, Sheriff Matlack is still at the top of that. 
 
Compensation Board Recommendation to the Morrow County Board of Commissioners 
Adjustments  
Mr. Fletcher said the only one he’d have a comment on would be Mr. Nelson.  If a COLA is 
applied to his $8,000 stipend, it would be $240.  He said he thought if we’re going to make an 
adjustment, that’s where an adjustment would have to take place and not just a COLA 
adjustment because that doesn’t make sense from a mathematic standpoint. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said the most recent information she can bring up is from 2015 (looking at her 
cell phone and showing it to the other Compensation Board members).  She said she was 
guessing Tier 2, District Attorney salaries in Oregon. 
 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 6 of 7 
 

Mr. Nelson replied that is right.  He said he thought it was Tier 2 probably, if it was the lower 
one, it was Tier 2. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said between that and his stipend, he’s coming in just barely above the Sheriff.   
 
Mr. Nelson said that is correct, he did look it up, Tier 2 was correct. 
 
Chair Currin asked if there was a recommendation. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said sure, but it wasn’t based on anything.  He said he was comfortable with a 
$2,000 increase to the stipend but he didn’t know what he was basing that on. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said $3,000 would be the same as a three-percent COLA.   
 
Mr. Fletcher asked if she meant on the entire side of it. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said almost, but yes. 
 
Chair Currin asked if that position would receive a COLA from the State as well. 
 
Mr. Nelson said it might, but he didn’t know for sure, and there is that potential.  He said 
sometimes they do include those, it’s not a salary increase but there have been COLAs in the 
past, but he didn’t recall the amounts.  That is the argument the DA is always arguing, that we 
got our COLA for the past 15 years or so, he said. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said once again, he was going to ask Mr. Nelson one more question to try to 
formulate it against something.  He said Umatilla County per capita, what are we talking about 
your workload compared to Umatilla County’s? 
 
Mr. Nelson’s reply was as follows:  The best example he could give was Umatilla County’s 
population is around 75,000 and they have a DA and he believed eight DDAs.  They do not 
handle any of the justice, city, they have two city municipal courts, Hermiston and Pendleton.  
The Hermiston Municipal Court, so as an example that’s hard because he said he didn’t know 
workload numbers, but the Hermiston Municipal Court handles misdemeanor offenses that 
happen in Hermiston and Pendleton has their own municipal court.  Morrow County has no 
municipal courts, we have a Justice Court, but Justice Court is also prosecuted by the DA and so 
when we say chief law enforcement aspect for a prosecution, we argue only in the County.  So 
workload, you look at the population how it’s spread out, is there more management aspect for 
DA Primus, yes, he said he wouldn’t deny that.  He said when he thinks about population, how 
many one DDA and one DA per population vs. nine over in Umatilla County…particularly since 
we handle all misdemeanor, all felonies, the only thing we don’t handle is if it’s conflicted on a 
specific conflict basis, if it involves a Sheriff’s deputy or someone else we work with, one case 
might get farmed out.  The only time we’ve done that, he said, is for Medicaid benefit fraud 



 

Compensation Board, February 12, 2019                                                                 Page 7 of 7 
 

cases.  The State Department of Justice will deputize them.  In each of these cases, he said, 
they’re still considered underneath me.  He said he didn’t have the set numbers but that’s the 
population, office size comparison. 
 
Discussion to clarify the stipend information provided in the notebooks.   
 
Chair Currin asked if there were recommendations. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said she was fine with either but she thought because we haven’t adjusted for a 
few years. 
 
Mr. Fletcher asked, anything right? 
 
Ms. Hendricks continued, that or a $3,000 increase in stipend. 
 
Ms. Hendricks moved to increase the stipend at $3,000 in lieu of COLAs which have been 
foregone for numerous years, which could justify a much bigger number but it’s not our budget.  
Chair Currin said the Commission can modify our recommendation as well.  Mr. Fletcher 
seconded.  Ms. Martin said she typically recuses herself from this vote because of her relation to 
Mr. Nelson.  Vote – Aye:  Chair Currin, Mr. Fletcher, Ms. Hendricks.  Recused:  Ms. Martin.  
Motion passes. 
 
Chair Currin asked if adjustments were needed elsewhere. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said it seems like it’s fairly straight forward with the COLA adjustment, three-
percent across the board. 
 
Ms. Hendricks said excluding the Surveyor and the DA. 
 
Mr. Fletcher moved to give all Elected Officials, excluding the District Attorney and the 
Surveyor, three-percent Cost of Living Adjustments.  Ms. Martin seconded.  Unanimous 
approval. 
 
Open Comments 
Mr. Fletcher said we’ll have to address the Sheriff. 
 
Chair Currin said her feeling on that is it’s a County Commission discussion and they can make 
that adjustment if it happens, or maybe it already has with the movement of the scale, but when 
that happens, they can address it and then next year the Compensation Board can revisit it. 
 
Adjourned:  1:49 p.m.  
 
 




























































	1 Agenda
	2 Feb. 6th Minutes
	3 Legislative Updates - Juvenile Department
	4 Treasurer's Monthly Report
	5 Oregon Parks & Rec County Opportunity Grant
	6 Cap & Trade Letters
	7 Compensation Board & Non-Represented Employees Data Presentation
	8 Administrator's Monthly Report
	9 Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	10 Correspondence



